EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31
(FC Investment Ltd.)
(Lee Wai Lim)
KY1-1111
2681
(c/o Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies)

03 6212 8316

(FC Global Vietnam Fund)

652

2023 31
130.47

1/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FC Global Vietnam Fund

652
2023 31
130.47

2/198



@
)

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10,000
10,000 50,000
50,000

10

2023

03 6852 7700

2006 30

2024

3.30  (

2.75

2.20 (
29

https://www.aizawa.

3/198

3.00
2.50
2.00

co.jp/

0.30
0.25
0.20



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®

4
)
()
)

)y )
)

4/198



2003
2006
2006
2006
2006
2009
2010
2013
2013
2015

10
10

28
28

13
23
10
26

23

5/198

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



i I

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FCoig—rn
P L IR
(FC Global Yietnam Fund)

CEEF=gan

FOA w2 bA s 0EFaF
{FC Investment Ltd.)

g

G.A.3. (4wl iTwl
{G.48.5. [Cayman) Limited)

{RrtaESE
(77w FEEDER - ERFH (T K OSIiEEFD
ég FEZZM
% E==T
22 FEEH
)
5= e e e ot e
?%E‘E,Eﬁ%'*i 1'{; %ﬁfE :#{Iﬁ{ﬁ ﬁ%?ETT:fEEE'\: E*i
A o FEE
A LA | | (77 FEEORERTE
TRy beRUAVIREASEE (B |V | mmmen
(Capital feset Management Co., (22| |B HerFEnEy
Ltd.) Wl E — —
(77 FEEOERER) 5 EREHAT=IE
SMT 7w P B~
(FANTFI)I7Fw R
(5MT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited)
BB 27 Eit (EREFEITFETS
ATtz B
74 ¥ DEERS S
(HFIcBW L2770 FEEFD
faTth=B
B Xl eitE LT O¥ERE

6/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013
2006 28
(FC Investment Ltd.) (HSBC ( )
(
)
2013 26
)( )(
)
2013
; . ( ) 2013
(G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited) 26 2013
(
)
2013
(SMT Fund Services (lreland)
Limited)
2013 2020
C )
2006 30
2006 30

7/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(FC Investment Ltd.

2003

2023 5,000
50,000 1,000

2003

1,000
(100 )

1925

50

150

8/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@@

9/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PricewaterhouseCoopers

@
'

20

10/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

infoMLRO@sumitrustgas.com

26 198

11/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13/198



EDINETOOOO
O00000oOoooognoOonod(Elso99)
Ooooooooooooooooonoad

by I T
NhFLEEOER
TI9—RErL
e P o ERa i
SRRSO A

M=k 73U A E5E

Iy S s 1]
TP AT 5
T HhILER

PEUE S -8R

14/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15/198



€))
&)

©)

4
®

(©)
Q)

®)
©®

(10

@
(b)

©

©)

©)

(a

o

20

15

50

12

10

50

50

10

16/198

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15
50

15

10



(c

(d

@
(b)
(9)
(d)

10

20

90

10

17/198

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( @

(b)



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

19/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/198



30

24/198

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

¢

25/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/198



(

)

1999

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

2022

1999

14,029

28/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
ooooodooodooodoooodd

2000 14,514
2001 15,083
2002 15,401
2003 15,642
2004 15,773
2005 15,918
2006 16,056
2007 16,017
2008 17,483
2009 18,479
2010 19,498
2011 21,034
2012 20,840
2013 21,095
2014 21,388
2015 22,485
2016 22,761
2017 22,698
2018 23,175
2019 23,173
2020 23,098
2021 22,826
2022 23,633

36
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2003 2022

2003 166.94

2004 239.29 43.3
2005 307.50 28.5
2006 751.77 1445
2007 927.02 23.3
2008 315.62 66.0
2009 49477 56.8
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2010 48466 2.0
2011 351.55 27.5
2012 413.73 17.7
2013 504.63 22.0
2014 545.63 8.1
2015 579.03 6.1
2016 664 .87 14.8
2017 984.24 48.0
2018 892.54 9.3
2019 960.99 7.7
2020 1,103.87 14.9
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London Stock Exchange Group plc
FTSE International Limited FTSE Fixed Income
LLC London Stock Exchange Group plc
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2023
26,042,352.58 97.25
61,853.04 0.23
26,104,205.62 97.48
673,537.86 2.52
26,777,743.48
( 3,494 ) 100.00
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2023
)

JS COMM BANK

1 | FOREIGN TRADE 552.816 | 3.49 | 1,930,649.20 | 3.91 | 2,164,165.73 | 8.08
VIETNAM VD

2 | FPT CORP VND 501,468 | 3.80 | 1,905,957.52 | 3.56 | 1,783,709.38 | 6.66
MASAN GROUP

3| bomp v 327.200 | 5.16 | 1,687,299.86 | 4.31 | 1,409,155.26 | 5.26
PETROVIETNAM

4| et 293,000 | 4.45 | 1,303,791.73 | 4.53 | 1,327,176.47 | 4.96

5 x&gHOMES JsC 538,450 | 3.43 | 1,848.851.90 | 2.17 | 1,167,501.84 | 4.36
SAIGON BEER

6| ot eord it 123,700 | 7.04 | 871,189.24 | 8.05 | 995,923.31 | 3.72

7 S&S'WORLD CORP 515,160 | 2.21 | 1,137.630.01 | 1.87 | 965,582.14 | 3.61
VIETNAM

8 | I 1Ty D 1,112,233 | 0.86 | 959,010.81 | 0.83 | 921,530.63 | 3.44
PHUNHUAN

o | N o 239,554 | 3.60 | 863,470.23 | 3.84 | 920,458.82 | 3.44
MOBILE WORLD

10| INVESTMENT CORP 454,396 | 3.26 | 1,483,250.58 | 1.98 | 900,081.54 | 3.36
VD
VIETNAM JS

11 | COMMERCIAL BK 654,773 | 1.60 | 1,049,163.45 | 1.30 | 850,716.78 | 3.18
VD
VIETNAM DAIRY

12| e Al DO 222.380 | 3.68 | 818.461.81 | 3.28 | 730,372.65 | 2.73

13 gﬁgADEPT CORP 260,000 | 2.21 | 575,065.73 | 2.26 | 587,007.44 | 2.19
VIETNAM
TECHNOLGICAL

14| ORI 457,600 | 2.39 | 1,001,788.69 | 1.25 | 573,006.47 | 2.14
VD
BK FOR

15| INVESTMENT AND 288,560 | 1.54 | 445,780.66 | 1.92 | 554,379.38 | 2.07
DEV VIET VND
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(

)

16

HOA PHAT GROUP
JSC VND

575,178

964,201.

7

.94

541,488.

14

.02

17

MILITARY
COMMERCIAL
JOINT STOCK
BANK VND

635,923

424,278.

43

.83

529,597.

22

.98

18

SAIGON THUONG
TIN COMMERCIAL
VND

455,013

589,275.

49

.15

525,275.

92

.96

19

VINCOM RETAIL
JSC VND

406,000

541,092.

49

.27

513,661.

35

.92

20

ASIA COMMERCIAL
BANK VND

442,031

570,634.

40

A1

490,517.

90

.83

21

VINH HOAN CORP
VND

153,700

499,484.

67

.02

464,210.

03

.73

22

BINH DUONG
WATER
ENVIROMENT JSC
VND

190,000

399,251.

12

.01

382,832.

80

.43

23

HDBANK JSC VND

448,378

403,361.

15

.79

356,219.

37

.33

24

VIETTEL
CONSTRUCTION
JSC VND

119,530

385,448.

86

.64

315,691.

58

.18

25

DUC GIANG
CHEMICALS JSC
VND

122,154

374,005.

67

.57

313,775.

77

.17

26

KINHBAC CITY
DEVELOPMENT VND

273,000

496,286.

82

.10

301,201.

29

.12

27

PETROVIETNAM
FERT CHEMICAL
VND

158,000

366,054.

47

.86

294,125.

67

.10

28

PETROVIETNAM CA
MAU FERTILIZER
JSC VND

219,000

362,758.

85

.19

261,214.

07

.98

29

POWER
CONSTRUCTION
JSC NO 1 VND

225,400

260,749.

21

1

250,604.

46

.94

30

VIETNAM RUBBER
GROUP LTD VND

350,000

491,473.

85

.71

248,988.

29

.93
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2023
2013 46,079,927.65 |  6,012,048,160 | 114.97 | 15,000
-— 39,381,726.02 |  5,138,133,794 | 137.21| 17,902
sl 27.642,073.20 | 3,606,461,200 | 112.98 | 14,741
2012 33,020,586.51 |  4,425.618,922 | 153.64 | 20,045
201% 28,485,937.17 3,716,560,223 | 165.66 | 21,614
20%5 31,766,459.25 |  4,144,569,938 | 190.24 | 24,821
2013 20.,986,900.79 |  3,912,390,046 | 181.68| 23,704
20%3 23,992,916.16 |  3,130,355,771 | 158.16 | 20,635
20;2 36,403,938.36 |  4,749,621,838 | 246.93 | 32,217
2052 27.501,841.65 |  3,588,165,280 | 198.07 | 25,842
2022 37.672.874.29 |  4,915.179.909 | 261.87 | 34,166
38.046,147.01 |  4,963.880.800 | 265.83 | 34,683

34.555.177.17 |  4.508.413.965 | 243.36 | 31,751

33.058,177.70 | _ 4.313.100.445 | 233.12| 30,415

30.876,170.27 |  4.028.413,935 | 218.51| 28,509

30.179,930.33 |  3,937.575.510 | 214.25| 27,953

32.191.207.18 |  4,199.986.801 | 229.56 | 29,951

27.501.841.65 |  3,588.165.280 | 198.07 | 25,842

10 23.747.674.25 |  3.098.350.050 | 172.39 | 22,492

11 24.093.227.43 |  3.143.443.380 | 175.49 | 22.896

12 24.440.719.70 | 3.188.780.699 | 178.21| 23,251

2023 26.777.743.48 |  3.493.692.192 | 197.18 | 25.726
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2023

50.29

19.34

17.66
10 35.99
11 7.82
12 14.84
13 4.50
14 12.95
15 56.13
16 19.79

100x
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0% 35,999
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2012 10 12,862 102,563 400,808
2013 30 (12,862) (102,563) (400, 808)
8,389 122,858 286,339
ggii w0 30 (8,389) (122,858) (286,339)
30,469 72,142 244,666
ggig 0 30 (30,469) (72,142) (244,666)
10
2015 10 11,758 39,153 217,271
2016 30 (11,758) (39,153) (217,271)
11
2016 10 3,370 48,682 171,959
2017 30 (3.370) (48,682) (171,959)
12
2017 10 20,547 25,526 166,980
2018 30 (20,547) (25,526) (166,980)
13
2018 10 15,829 17,758 165,051
2019 30 (15,829) (17,758) (165,051)
14
2019 10 3,099 16,449 151,701
2020 30 (3,099) (16,449) (151,701)
15
2020 10 12,760 17,036 147,425
2021 30 (12,760) (17,036) (147,425)
16
2021 10 4,123 12,701 138,847
2022 30 (4,123) (12,701) (138,847)
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2010 2018

33 39

33

53/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 18 2019 30

2016 679
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FC

2022 30
2022 2021

7 730,511 95,310 1,101,370 143,696
8 26,934,734 3,514,175 35,450,913 4,625,281
9 49,290 6,431 150,069 19,580
10 100,840 13,157 228,614 29,827
27,815,375 3,629,072 36,930,966 4,818,383
27,501,842 3,588,165 36,403,938 4,749,622
27,501,842 3,588,165 36,403,938 4,749,622

10 100,658 13,133 42,780 5,582
11 212,875 27,774 484,248 63,180
313,533 40,907 527,028 68,761

27,815,375 3,629,072 36,930,966 4,818,383
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FC

2022 30

2022 2021
491,965 64,187 410,249 53,525
1,960 256 38 5
61,740 8,055 (4,010) (523)
5 (5,811,570) (758,236) 14,433,963 1,883,199
(5,255,905) (685,738) 14,840,240 1,936,206
12 31,446 4,103 28,441 3,711
12 279,439 36,458 253,002 33,009
12 416,062 54,284 582,398 75,985
12 30,000 3,914 30,000 3,914
12 423,349 55,234 302,523 39,470
43,477 5,672 42,381 5,529
12 174,697 22,793 158,079 20,625
12 69,873 9,116 63,261 8,254
12 3,000 391 3,000 391
28,284 3,690 39,336 5,132
43,507 5,676 41,147 5,368
1,543,134 201,333 1,543,568 201,389
(6.799,039) (887,071) 13,296,672 1,734,817
(6.799,039) (887,071) 13,296,672 1,734,817
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2022

2021

147,425

4,123
(12,701)

(8,578)

138,847

151,701

12,760
(17,036)

(4,276)

147,425
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36,403,938 4,749,622
1,033,428 134,831
(3,136,485) (409,217)
(2,103,057) (274,386)
(6,799,039) (887,071)
27,501,842 3,588,165
23,992,916 3,130,356
2,808,027 366,363
(3,693,677) (481,914)

(885,650) (115,551)
13,296,672 1,734,817
36,403,938 4,749,622
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2022 30
2022 2021

(6,799,039) (887,071) 13,296,672 1,734,817
(491, 965) (64,187) (410, 249) (53,525)
(1,960) (256) (38) )
(7.292,964) (951,513) 12,886,385 1,681,287
8,516,179 1,111,106 (12,368,338) (1,613,697)
127,774 16,671 (228,614) (29,827)
57,878 7,551 42,780 5,582
(20,799) .714) 66,820 8,718
1,388,068 181,101 399,033 52,062
1,421 185 40 5
531,183 69,303 398,974 52,054
1,920,672 250,590 798,047 104,121
1,095,528 142,934 2,746,651 358,356
(3,387,059) (441,910) (3,481,702) (454, 258)
(2,291,531) (298,976) (735,051) (95,902)
(370, 859) (48, 386) 62,996 8,219
1,101,370 143,696 1,038,374 135,477
7 730,511 95,310 1,101,370 143,696

10 30

2022 250,574 (3,387,059) 3,136,485
32,692 (441,910) 409,217
2021 38,599 (3,481,702) 3,693,677 250,574
5,036 (454, 258) 481,914 32,692
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28 2006 10
492 106
KY1-1106 2021
2006 11 283

HNX

SMT
SMT
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2.1
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(a 2021 10

2021 10

(b 2021 10
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100

2021 10



30

FC

2022
2.2
(a
()
2.3
2.4
(a
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USD



FC

2022 30

2.4

o
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FC

2022 30
2.4

(c

3.4
FRS 109
12

Gl

2.5

2.6

75/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FC

2022 30

2.6

2022 30

2.7

FRS 12
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2022 30
2.7
2022 2021 30
2.8
2.9
90

2.10

30

12
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2022 30

2.11

2.12

FRS 32

3.1
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FC

2022 30

3.1

2022 2021 30 3.2.1

3.2

3.2.1
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2022 2021 30
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2022 2021
26,905,897 97.84 35,339,066 97.07
19,230 0.07 20,160 0.06
9,607 0.03 91,687 0.25
26,934,734 97.94 35,450,913 97.38

VN
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FC
2022 30
3.2
3.2.1
2022 30
JS Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam 552,816 1,697,191 6.17
Others 4,438,354 16.15
591,926 2.15
121,741 0.44
389,331 1.42
404,491 1.47
138,783 0.51
64,170 0.23
1,783,339 6.49
Masan Group Corp 339,200 1,408,413 5.12
Others 547,294 1.99
40,316 0.15
193,493 0.70
FPT Corporation 501,468 1,693,083 6.16
Others 1,219,701 4.43
203,148 0.74
300,793 1.09
240,929 0.88
332,641 1.21
1,800,297 6.55
916,770 3.33
2,626,322 9.56
22
14,638 0.05
2,226,885 8.09
658,520 2.39
572,350 2.08
Digiworld Corporation 515,160 1,391,448 5.06
328,679 1.19
121,839 0.44
438,990 1.60
26,905,897 97.84
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FC

2022 30

3.2

3.2.1
19,230 0.07
19,230 0.07
9,607 0.03
9,607 0.03

26,934,734 97.94
0.01
2022 2021

113,091 9,607 561,955 91,687
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FC
2022 30
3.2
3.2.1
2021 30
201,908 0.55
9,580,055 26.31
688,168 1.90
125,445 0.34
594,346 1.63
140,769 0.39
724,342 1.99
11,542 0.03
2,706,916 7.44
193,224 0.53
57,336 0.16
FPT Corporation 460,224 1,881,934 5.17
Others 1,535,185 4.21
712,905 1.96
71,231 0.20
366,267 1.01
309,959 0.85
Hoa Phat Group Joint Stock Co 1,205,237 2,803,370 7.70
Others 1,979,730 5.44
2,958,921 8.13
2,234,260 6.13
26
3,273,042 8.99
459,629 1.26
42,475 0.12
479,796 1.32
956,155 2.63
169,664 0.47
80,466 0.21
35,339,066 97.07
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FC
2022 30
3.2
3.2.1
20,160 0.06
20,160 0.06
26,190 0.07
65,497 0.18
91,687 0.25
35,450,913 97.38
0.01
2022 2021 30
FRS 107
VN
2022 30 37.3 2021 39.5 23.6 2021
22.4 VN
VN VN
VN 2022 30 58.0 2021

56.8
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2022 30
3.2
3.2.1
2022 2021 30
2022 24

3.2.2
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2022 2021
5,949,748 8,167,588
(3,764,452) (4,631,746)

VN
VN
2022 2021 30
VN
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FC
2022 30
3.2
3.2.2
2022 30
2021
2022 30
50bp 2021  50bp 3,653
2021 5,507

3.2.3
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FC
2022 30
3.2
3.2.3
2022 2021 30
2022
292,958 437,553 730,511
26,934,734 26,934,734
4,381 44,909 49,290
100,840 100,840
398,179 27,417,196 27,815,375
100,658 100,658
212,875 212,875
212,875 100,658 313,533
185,304 27,316,538 27,501,842
2021
427,938 673,432 1,101,370
35,450,913 35,450,913
66,124 83,945 150,069
228,614 228,614
494,062 36,436,904 36,930,966
42,780 42,780
484,248 484,248
484,248 42,780 527,028

9,814 36,394,124 36,403,938
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FC

2022 30

3.2

3.2.3

2022 2021
(1.02) (279,655) 0.87 316,629
2022 2021 30
3.3

20
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2022 30
3.3
2022 2021 30
2022
2021

3.4

12
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20
313,533 313,533
27,501,842 27,501,842
27,815,375 27,815,375
527,028 527,028
36,403,938 36,403,938
36,930,966 36,930,966
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FC

2022 30
3.4
2022 2021 30
2022 2021
100.59 A+ 100.41 A+
G.A.S.
CMS
2022 2021 30
A

12
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FC

2022 30

3.5

3.6
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FC
2022 30
3.6
2022 2021 30
2022
26,905,897 26,905,897
19,230 19,230
9,607 9,607
26,905,897 9,607 19,230 26,934,734
2021
35,339,066 35,339,066
20,160 20,160
91,687 91,687

35,339,066 91,687 20,160 35,450,913
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2022 30
3.6
2022 2021 30
2022 2021 30
2022
2021
2022 2021 30
3.7

2022 2021 30
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20,160 20,160
(930) (930)
19,230 19,230
(930) (930)
19,776 19,776
384 384
20,160 20,160
384 384
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2022 2021
7,245,956 8,279,131
(13,057,526) 6,154,832
(5.811,570) 14,433,963
2021 30
2022 2021
730,511 1,101,370

2021 1,101,370
1,960 2021 38
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2022 2021
26,905,897 35,339,066
19,230 20,160
9,607 91,687
26,934,734 35,450,913
2022 2021
4,022 66,122
44,727 83,945
541 2
49,290 150,069
2022 2021
100,840 228,614
2022 2021
100,658 42,780
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FC

2022 30
11
2022 2021
250,574
2,247 2,685
19,893 23,869
2,465 2,466
6,375 6,479
71,523 83,077
43,000 42,500
12,481 14,918
4,969 5,950
49,922 51,730
212,875 484,248
12
(a
0.09
2022 2021
31,446 28,441
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2021 12 31
HWM
2021

30

30
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0.8
2022 2021
279,439 253,002
100 15
2022 2021
416,062 582,398
30
2022 30
HWM 2021
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0.06
2022 2021
30,000 30,000
2,000 0.11 2,000
0.1 72,000
2022 2021
423,349 302,523
3,000
2022 2021

3,000 3,000
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FC
2022 30
12
(]
0.5
0.2
2022 2021
174,697 158,079
69,873 63,261
13
2022 10
84,601 654,628
14

2023 12
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2022
JS COMM BANK FOREIGN
1 TRADE VIETNAM VND 552,816 .49 1,930,649.20 | 3.07 1,697,191.21 6.17
2 FPT CORP VND 501,468 .80 1,905,957.52 | 3.38 1,693,082.82 6.16
3 MASAN GROUP CORP VND 339,200 .12 1,736,410.76 | 4.15 1,408,413.35 5.12
4 DIGIWORLD CORP VND 515,160 .21 1,137,630.01 | 2.70 1,391,448.41 5.06
5 CEEROVIETNAM GAS JS 286,090 .45 1,272,800.36 | 4.61 1,319,880.05 4.80
MOBILE WORLD
6 INVESTMENT CORP VND 454,396 .26 1,483,250.58 | 2.68 1,219,701.56 4.43
7 VINHOMES JSC VND 538,450 .43 1,848,851.90 | 2.13 1,144,965.63 4.16
8 \S/'SI:I)GON BEER ALCOHO 123,700 .04 871,189.24 | 7.76 959,799.50 3.49
9 x’;gTNAM PROSPERITY 1,112,233 .86 959,010.81 | 0.75 839,667.58 3.05
10 \F;:gNHUAN JEWELRY JSC 179,666 .81 863,471.90 | 4.49 806,285.39 2.93
VIETNAM DAIRY
11 PRODUCTS VND 237,380 .70 877,366.80 | 3.03 719,816.05 2.62
VIETNAM JS
12 COMMERCIAL BK VND 654,773 .60 1,049,163.45 | 0.97 637,115.02 2.32
13 ng PHAT GROUP JSC 715,178 .67 1,193,260.24 | 0.89 635,900.41 2.31
VIETNAM TECHNOLGICAL
14 AND COM BANK VND 457,600 .39 1,091,788.69 | 1.36 623,747.03 2.27
15 | VINH HOAN CORP VND 153,700 .25 499,484.67 | 3.56 547,293.96 1.99
MILITARY COMMERCIAL
16 JOINT STOCK BANK VND 635,923 .67 424,278.43 1 0.84 533,425.32 1.94
17 | GEMADEPT CORP VND 260,000 .21 575,065.73 | 2.01 523,424.06 1.90
18 x’:gCOM RETAIL JSC 406,000 .33 541,092.49 | 1.17 476,785.63 1.73
19 DUC GIANG CHEMICALS 142,154 .03 430,944.27 | 3.25 462,657.82 1.68
JSC VND
PETROVIETNAM FERT
20 CHEMICAL VND 214,000 .42 518,914.23 | 1.96 420,496.59 1.53
21 CE[I)A COVNERCIAL BANK 442,031 .29 570,634.40 | 0.93 411,571.03 1.50
BK FOR INVESTMENT
22 AND DEV VIET VND 288,560 .54 445,780.66 | 1.42 410,274.88 1.49
SAIGON THUONG TIN
23 COMMERCIAL VND 455,013 .30 589,275.49 | 0.86 393,124.51 1.43
BINH DUONG WATER
24 ENVIROMENT JSC VND 190,000 .10 399,251.12 | 2.06 390,471.00 1.42
KINHBAC CITY
25 DEVELOPVENT VND 320,000 .82 581,309.31 | 1.22 389,212.77 1.42
26 | HDBANK JSC VND 448,378 .90 403,361.15 | 0.80 360,124.09 1.31
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27 \’\/‘,C\IJDVA LAND  INVEST 100,000 77 376,630.46 | 3.56 356,079.36 .29
DONG HAI JSC OF

28 BENTRE VND 143,250 .58 369,396.38 | 2.42 347,265.45 .26
PETROVIETNAM CA MAU

29 FERTILIZER JSC VND 219,000 .66 362,758.85 | 1.41 309,537.39 .13

30 VIETNAV RUBBER GROUP 350,000 .40 491,473.85 | 0.88 306,798.64 .12
LTD VND

31 VIETTEL CONSTRUCTION 119,530 .22 385,448.86 | 2.52 300,792.69 .09
JSC VND
NAM LONG INVESTMENT

32 CORP VND 234,730 .25 528,381.41 | 1.27 298,298.00 .08
POWER CONSTRUCTION

33 3JSC NO 1 VND 196,000 .33 260,749.21 | 1.36 267,164.39 .97
VIET CAPITAL

34 SECURITIES JSC VND 195,390 .87 366,308.94 | 1.23 240,928.82 .88
KHANG DIEN HOUSE

35 | TRADING AND INV JSC 194,829 .98 385,502.92 | 1.18 229,205.79 .83
VND

36 x’:ETJET AVIATION JSC 47,400 .76 273,010.44 | 4.65 220,469.74 .80
VIETNAM NATL

37 PETROLEUM VND 151,460 .25 340,204.02 | 1.38 208,993.59 .76

38 \S/;[I) SECURITIES CORP 251,100 .30 326,385.22 | 0.83 208,521.58 .76
HO CHI MINH CITY

39 SECURITIES VND 197,700 .49 294,797.49 | 1.03 203,147.67 .74
PETROVIETNAM POWER

40 CORP VND 380,000 .62 234,066.87 | 0.52 196,829.26 .72
VNDIRECT SECURITIES

41 CORP VND 267,000 .23 328,141.98 | 0.73 195,969.46 .71

42 | BAOVIET HLDGS VND 86,300 .55 220,073.54 | 2.24 193,643.83 .70
REFRIGERATION ELEC

43 ENGINEERING VND 59,915 .55 152,952.93 | 3.23 193,493.06 .70
PETROVIETNAM

44 TRANSPORTATION VND 207,500 .08 223,923.05 | 0.82 170,574.17 .62

45 | HA DO JSC VND 92,400 .96 181,484.79 | 1.71 157,726.80 .57
INVESTMENT AND

46 INDUSTRIAL DEV VND 35,900 .30 82,447.15 | 3.80 136,414.88 .50
HAT AN TRANSPORT AND

47 STEVEDORING JSC VND 70,000 .22 155,180.23 | 1.74 121,838.70 .44

48 5:; DIGITAL RETAIL 39,600 .92 115,767.72 | 3.07 121,741.39 .44

49 \Ej;lgv INSURANCE CORP 100,770 .96 97,098.83 | 1.13 114,324.06 .42
BINH SON REFINING

50 | AND PETROCHEMICAL 130,000 .17 152,103.85 | 0.84 109,591.92 .40
VND

51 \DIS-DF XANH GROUP JSC 127,500 .59 203,089.78 | 0.85 108,553.88 -39
AIRPORTS CORP OF

52 VIETNAM VND 34,400 .06 105,335.97 | 3.15 108,207.86 .39
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53 \%SAN CONSUMER CORP 26,450 .20 84,550.41 | 3.92 103,723.32 .38

54 | IDICO CORP JSC VND 44,000 .36 103,738.34 | 2.08 91,716.64 .33
DAT XANH REAL ESTATE

55 SERVICES JSC VND 120,750 .41 170,456.18 | 0.61 73,180.28 .27

56 \F;:gOC HOA RUBBER JSC 30,000 .09 92,670.10 | 2.31 69,328.52 .25

57 | VINGROUP JSC VND 29,791 .17 124,265.90 | 2.31 68,720.58 .25
LIEN VIET POST JOINT

58 STOCK COM BK VND 114,111 .55 62,705.52 | 0.54 61,738.53 .22
PHAT DAT REAL EST

59 DEV VND 27,260 .14 85,601.85 | 2.14 58,423.27 .21

60 | PHU TAI CORP VND 25,200 .81 96,074.33 | 2.18 54,959.53 .20
VIETNAM CONTAINER

61 SHIPPING VND 33,000 .85 60,896.24 | 1.48 48,926.31 .18
SONADEZI CHAU DUC

62 SHAREHOLDING CO VND 25,000 .09 52,255.23 | 1.72 42,884.70 .16
THAT NGUYEN INTL

63 HOSPITAL JSC VND 25,000 .28 56,946.24 | 1.61 40,315.82 .15

64 | CENTURY LAND JSC VND 66,170 .75 49,952.19 | 0.61 40,240.95 .15

65 | GELEX GROUP JSC VND 40,700 .12 86,453.17 | 0.80 32,433.00 .12

66 Egg DAU WOT WATER 20,000 .83 36,673.35 | 1.62 32,336.53 .12
VIETNAM

67 | INTERNATIONAL 33,750 .51 51,129.49 | 0.92 31,141.22 11
COMMERCIAL JSB VND

68 | LONG HAU CORP VND 29,400 .15 63,345.91 | 1.05 30,949.96 .11
PETROVIETNAM

69 | TECHNICAL SERVICES 30,000 .23 36,987.03 | 0.97 29,190.96 A1
CORP VND
BAOMINH INSURANCE

70 CORP VND 21,010 .73 36,359.42 | 1.17 24,673.07 .09

71 \’mg KIM STEEL JSC 30,000 .68 50,463.84 | 0.77 23,025.63 .08

72 WAI LINH GROUP VND 509,434 .29 1,674,853.37 | 0.04 19,229.57 .07
34HNDL
GIA LAl ELECTRICITY

73 35C VND 21,200 .07 22,620.19 | 0.76 16,182.53 .06
BINH DINH

74 PHARMACEUTICAL VND 8,320 .96 16,333.13 | 1.76 14,638.43 .05

75 | HOA SEN GROUP VND 17,466 .30 22,722.20 | 0.62 10,841.62 .04
VIETNAM CONSTRUCTION

76 IMP=EXP JSC VND 116 .95 110.17 | 0.90 103.87 .00

7 \D/:g PHARVACEUTICAL 6 .37 26.20 | 3.59 21.52 .00

78 \SSBECCONS CONS JSC 6 .97 53.79 | 2.42 14.52 .00
PETROL IMEX

79 PETROCHEMICAL VND 10 .87 8.66 | 1.16 11.62 .00
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VIETNAM EXP-IMP COMM

80 [ 35 BK VND 7] 0.62 4.34 | 1.43 10.04 | 0.00
BINH MINH PLASTICS

81 | 35 vnp 2] 1.16 2.32 | 2.42 4.83| 0.00
SUPERDONG FAST FERRY

82 | KIEN GI VND 2| 3.14 6.27 | 0.74 1.47| 0.00

g3 | [ooNG A GIA LA 2| 0.94 1.87 | 0.56 1.11] 0.00
VND

1 \C,ESTURY LAND JSC RTS 50,900 | 0.47 23,799.21 | 0.19 9,606.59 | 0.03

1 Sﬁ\éFMVN DIAVOND ETF 60,000 | 1.15 68,851.17 | 1.07 64,169.77 | 0.23
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 30 September 2022

022 021
Notes USsS UsSs
Income
Dividend income 491 565 410,249
Interest mcome 1.960 38
Met foreign exchange gainf{loss) 01,740 (4.010)
Net change in fair value on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 (58115707 14433963
Total net (loss) gain (5.255905) 14840240
Expenses
Management fee 12 31,446 28,441
Investment management fiee 12 279 430 253,002
Performance fee 12 416,062 582 308
Trustee fee 12 30,000 30,000
Custodian and administrator fee 12 423349 02,523
Audit fee 43477 42,381
Dhstributor fee 12 174,697 158,079
Agent company fee 12 09,873 63,261
Registrar fee 12 3,000 3,000
Professional fee 28,284 39,336
Other expenses 43,507 41,147
Total operating expenses 1,543,134 1,543,568
{Loss)/gain before income tax (6,799,039 13,296,672
Total comprehensive income (6,799,039 13,296,672

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Recsivables
Due from broker

Total assets

Equity

Net assets attributable to unitholdars

Total equity
Liabilities
e to brokar
Payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and labilities

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2022

2022
Notes USS

730,511
26,934,734
49,200
100,840

L= -S|

=]
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2021
USS

1,100,370
35,450,913
150,069
228614

27,815,375

36,930,966

27,501,842

36,403,938

27,501,842

36,403,938

10 100,658
11 212,875

42,780
484248

313,533

S27.028

27,815,375

36,930,966

The AECCHTPTIVING noles fnrm ar :'rz.fﬂgrnf prard f.:,f Hhese ﬁnu.rm:'m' slatements,
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VIETNAM FUND

(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022

2022
Met assets attnbutable to umtholders at the
beginning of the year

[ssuance of umts
Redemption of units

Met decrease from unit transactions
Total comprehensive income

Met assets atiributable to unitholders at
the end of the vear

2021
Met assets attributable to uritholders at the
begimning of the year

[ssuance of units
Redemption of units

et decrease from unit transactions
Total comprzhensive income

Net assets atiributable to unitholders at
the end of the year

The aecompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Number of

Units USs
147,425 36,403,938
4123 1033428

(12.701) (3.136,485)

(#,5T8) (2.103.057)

- (6,799.039)
138,847 27,501,842
151,701 23,992,916
12,760 2,808,027

(17,036} (3.693,677)

(4.276) (885.650)

- 13,296,672
147,425 36,403,938
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
Cash fMows from operating activities Mote US% LSS
Total comprehensive income {6, 799 035 13,296,672
Adjustments for;
Dividend income (491.965) (410,249
Interast incoms (1,960) (38)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (7,292,964) 12,886,385
Changes in operating assets and habalites:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,516,179 (12,368,338)
Due from broker 127,774 (228614)
Due to broker 5T.RTR 42,780
Pavables (20,799} 66,820
Cash generated from operations 1,388,068 399,033
Interest recerved 1.421 40
Dividends received 531,183 398974
MNet cash inflow from operating activities 1,920,672 TO8.047
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from units issued 1,095,528 2,746,651
Payments for units redeemed (3,387,059 {3,481,702)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (2,291.531) (735,051)
MNet (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (370,859) 62,996
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of the yvear 1.101.370 1.038,374
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear T 730,511 1,101,370
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from fnancing activities

Payments for wnifs Redemption
! E:f!;':'shtr redesmed of units 30 Sﬁ;:“h“
- 5% Uss -

2022 Redemption —— - .
pavable to unitholders 23057 (3,367,008) 3136483
2021 Redemption - - -
payable to unitholders 38,599 (3 A81,702) 3693677 250,51

The accompanying notes form an imegral part of these financial statements.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2022

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

GENERAL

Wietnam Fund, {a sub trust of FC Global) (the “Fund™), a Cayman Islands Trust, was constituted in
Cavman [slands on 28 Angust 2006 and commenced operations on 5 October 2006, The address of
the Fund’s registered office is effective from 1 February 2021, is 3™ Floor, Citrus Grove, 106 Goring
Avenue, PO, Box 492, George Town, Grand Cavman KY1-1106, Cavman Islands. The Fund
registered with the Caviman Islands Monetary Authority on 23 November 2006 and also registered
with the Japanese Financial Services Agency on 15 September 2006,

The investment objective of the Fund is to derive income and long-term capital appreciation through
the acquisition of equity and equitv-related securities, including convertible bonds, warrants and
bonds with warrants and fixed income secunties issued by companies established in Vietnam (herein
after “Vietnam Companies™) or companies that are listed on Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
(“HOSE™) or Hanod Stock Exchange (“HNX™) or that have operations in Vietnam or business
exposures to the Vietmamese economy and are listed on any stock exchanges (herein after “Vietnam
Related Compamies™) or funds investing in such securities and ophions related to such secunties or
cash amnd cash equivalents including money market instruments such as treasury bills, at a reasonable
level of risk.

FC Investments Lid (the “Manager™), a Caviman Islands company, acts as the fund manager. The
Manager has appointed Capital Asset Management Co., Ltd (the “Investment Manager™), a
Japanese company, to provide investment advisory and fund management services to the Fund.

In accordance with the Master Trust Deed, G.ALS, (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™), a Cayinan
Islands company, provides trustee and registrar services to the Fund and has delegated certain of its
custodian functions to Sumitome Mitsui Trost Bank, Limited (London Branch) and certain of its
registrar and transfer agent functions to SMT Fund Services (Treland) Limited. SMT Fund Services
(Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™), a related company of the Trustes, provides fimd
admimstration services and delegate registrar serviees to the Fund, Sumatomo Mitsu Trust Bank,
Limited {London Branch) (the “Custodian™), a related company of the Trustes, provides delegate

custodian services to the Fund.

The Manager has appointed Aizawa Secunties Co. Lid, (the “Distributor”™) as the agent company
for the manager and distnbutor of units in Japan. The agent company and distnbutor was
incorporated as a joint stock company under the Commercial Code of Japan.

11
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

GENERAL ({continued)

The Fund has a finite life of 100 years from the date of the revised Supplemental Trust Deed on |
September 2013, In the event in which the Net Asset Value (“NAV™) of the Fund at any time falls
below US$5,000.000, the Fund may be terminated by the Manager. In the event that the Fund is
terminated, the Manager must publish {or cause the distributor to publish) or notify {or cause the
distributor to notify) all unitholders and beneficiaries of such termination and any other information
as requirad under the applicable law forthwith upon such termination.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 zi5 of aration

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS™). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of
applyving the Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where and assumptions and estimates are significant to financial statements,
are disclosaed in Mote 4.

{a) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 October 2021

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 October 2021 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the
Fund.

by Mew standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not
been early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in prepaning these financial

statements. None of these are expected to have a matenal effect on the financial statements of the
Fund.

12
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({continued)

2.2 Foreign currency translation
{a) Functional and presentation civrency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates (the “functional currency™). The financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (“USS™), which 1s the Fund’s functional currency.

(b Travisae tiovis aved balanees

Transactions in a currency other than USS are translated into USE using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Curreney translation ansing from the setflement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denomimated in foreign
currencies at the closing rates at the reporting date are recogmsed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency assets and liabilities held at reporting date are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the Statement of Finaneial Position

date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and financial liabilities camed at
fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
“net change in fair value on financial assets and lahilities at fair value through profit or loss™

2.3 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a ime-proporionate basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities

fa) Classification

(1) Assets

The Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those
finanecial assets and the contractual cash fow characteristics of the financial assets. The portficlio of
financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, The Fund is primarily
focused on far value information and uses that information to assess the assets” performance and to
make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to imevocably designate any equity secunties as
fair value through other comprehensive income.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

fa) Classification {contined)

(i) Assets (confinued)

The contractual cash flows of the Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however,
these secunties are neither held for the purpose of colleeting contractual cash fows nor held both
for collzcting contractual cash flows and for sale, The collection of contractual cash flows is only
incidental to achieving the Fund's business model’s objective. Consequently, all investments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss,

(i1} Liabilities

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value throngh
profit or loss. As such, the Fund classifies all of its inwvestment portfolio as financial assets or
liabilities as fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund's policy requres the Investment Manager and the Trustee to evaluate the information
about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial
information.

(b} Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabalities at far
value through profit or loss are initially recogmised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as
incwrred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership. On sale of an
investment, the difference between the net sale proceads and its carrving amount is recogmised in
profit or loss, Realised gains o losses from investment transactions are recordsd on the First-In-
First-Cnrt {“FIFO™) method.

14
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

2.4 Finmancial assets and liabilities {continued)

b} Recognition, derecogrition and meastrement (continuad)

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss™ category are presented
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within net changes in fair value of financial assets and
liahilities at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income within dividend income when the Fund’s right to receive
pavment is established.

fe) Tmpaivment

Financial assets

The Fund assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost, The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant inerease in credit risk, Note 3.4 details how the Fund determines whether there
has beena significant increase in eredit risk.

For trade receivables, the Fund applies the simplified approach permitted by FRS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recogmised from imtial recognition of the trade receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, the general 3 stage approach is applied. Credit loss allowanee is
based on 12-month expected credit loss if there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recogmtion of the assets. If there 15 a signficant increase in credit nsk since imtal recognition,
lifetime expected credit loss will be caleulated and recogmised.

{d) Transfers between levels of the fair value erarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have oceurred at the beginning
of the reporting period.

2.5 Provisions for other liabili and charges
Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Fair value estimation of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets, such as trading securities, are based
on quoted market prices at the reporting date, The quoted market price used for financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Fund is the last traded pnce. For the purpose of caleulating the
published NAV per unit, the fair value of financial instroments is based on last traded price as st
forth in the Fund's Offering Memorandum.

The farr values of financial instruments that are not traded 1 an active market such as unlisted
securities are determined by using valuation techniques, The Fund uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date, Valuation
techniques used include the use of corporate recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow
analysis and other valvation techmiques commonly wsed by market participants making the
maximum use of market input and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs,

The trading volume in respect of the secunties histed on the Vietmam stock exchanges may be
substantially less than that of the world’s leading stock markets, In addition, the valuation and
recoverability of the secunities in these financial statements are based on conditions prevailing and
information available as at or on 30 September 2022, updated for matenal changes to the date of
these financial statements, The ongoing economic uneertainties in the countries in the region will
contime to impact on the assessment of such valuations,

The fair values of current financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their carrying amounts,

2.7 Taxation

The Fund is domiciled in the Cayman [slands. Under current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is
no income, estate, transfer, sales or other Cayman Islands taxes pavable by the Fund,

The Fund intends generally to conduet its affairs such that 1t will not be subject to income tax in any
junsdiction. The Fund may incuwr withholding tax imposed by certain countries on investment
income. Such income would be recorded gross of withholding tax in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Withhoelding tax would be shown as a separate ling item in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income,

In accordance with FRS 12 - Income Taxes, the Fund is required to recognise a tax lability when it
is possible that the tax laws of forelgn countries require a tax hability to be assessed on the Fund’'s
capital gains sourced from such foreign countries, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of the facts and circumstances,

1o
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Taxation (continmed)

The tax Lability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant tax authonties
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. There 1s sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted law is applied to offshore
investment funds, This ereates uncertainty about whether or not a tax lability will ultimately be
paid by the Fund. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities, management considers
all relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of
paymments, including any formal or informal tax practices of the relevant tax authorities,

As of 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund has reviewed and evaluated its comulative tax
positions in all major jurisdictions and has determined that there are no uncertain tax positions.
While this represents the management’s best estimate, this determination could differ from the
amount utimately payable.

2.8 Pavables

Pavables are imitially recognised at fair value, subsequently camed at amertised cost using the
effective interest method. All expenses are recognised onan accrual basis.

2.9 Due from and due to broker

Amounts due from and due to broker represent receivables for securities sold and pavables for
securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the Statement
of Financial Position date respectively.

These amounts are recogmsed initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment provision for amounts due fom broker. At each
reporting date, the Fund shall measure the loss allowance onamounts due from broker at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit nsk has inereased significantly sinee irmtial
recogmtion. If at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses, Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter
Fankrptey or financial reorgamisation, and defanlt in pavments are all considered indicators that a
loss allowanee may be required. I the credit nsk inereases to the point that it is considered to be
credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrving amount adjusted for
the loss allowanee.

A significant inerease in eredit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is
more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is
considered credit impaired.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset the recogmsed amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultansously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Fund or
the countenpanty.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances held with financial institutions which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.12 Units

The Fund issues one class of redeemable units in USS, which are redeemable at the holder’s option
and are classified as equity,

The redeemable units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holder exercises the nght to put the units back to the Fund.

Should the terms or conditions of the redeemable units change such that they do not comply with
the stnct enteria contained in FRS 32 *Financial Instruments: Presentation’, the redeemable units
would be reclassified to a financial lability from the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria.
The financial lability would be measured at the instroment”s fair value at the date of reclassification.
Any difference between the carrving value of the equity instrument and fair value of the lability on
the date of reclassification would be recognised as equity,

Units are issued and redeemed at the holder’s option at prices based on the Fund®s NAV per unit at
the time of 1ssue or redemption. The Fund’s NAV per unit 15 caleulated by dividing the net assets
attributable to unitholders with the total munber of outstanding wnits. In accordance with the
provisions of the Fund’s Offering Memorandumn, investment positions are valued based on the last
traded market price for the purpose of determining the NAV per unit for subscriptions and
redemptions.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Fund is involved in investment trading and its activities expose it to a variety of risks but not
lirited to market nsk (including price nsk, interest rate rnisk and curreney nsk), eredit nsk and
licuickity risk. The overall responsibility for the implementation of the Fund’s financial risk
management policies lies with the Investment Manager, who, among other things, focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performange of the Fund.

The Fund may undertake hedging only to the extent that it 1s practical taking into account the costs
involved and the timing of investments, Recognising the unpredictability of financial markets, the
Investment Manager seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Fund by adopting restrictions and policies relating to the activities and investment of assets of the
Fund. The Fund has laid down policies and procedures for risk containment by ensuring that the
portfolio risks are well diversified through approprate portfolio mix and striet adherence to
investment restriclions as set out in the Fund’s Offering Memorandum, These policies are approved
by the Manager of the Fund.

Denvative financial instruments may be used from time to either create an exposure to an underlying
instrument, or to leverage the portfolio within acceptable constraints. The Fund's overall market
positions are momitored on a daily basis by the Investment Manager. As at 30 September 2022 and
2021, the Fund held derivatives instruments as disclosed in Mote 3.2.1.

3.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of potential adverse changes to the value of fimancial instruments because of
changes in market conditions such as interest rate and currency rate movements and volatility in
SECUTITY Prices,

At reporting date, the Fund's market risk compnses three main components, namely changes in
actual market prices of investments (“price risk™), interest rates and foreign currency movements,
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk

The Fund is exposed to price risk from its investment in listed equities and related derivatives,

The Fund’s investments are susceptible to price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices
of these financial instruments, In the case of its investments in Vietnam, it involves cerlain
considerations and risks not typically associated with investments in more developed market. In
addiion to their smaller size, lesser hqudity and greater volatility, the Vietmamese secunties
markets are less developed and there is often substantially less publicly available information about
Vietnamese issuers than there is in developed markets.

Price nsk represents the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements, The nature of the Fund's activities directly results in market risk
exposures being taken so as to maximise refums.

The table below summarises the Fund's overall market risk exposure of investments as at 30
September 2022 and 2021:

22 2
% of net % of met
assels assels
atiributable attributable
to to
Fair value unitholders Fair value unitholders
USS USs

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Listed securities 26,905897 97 84 35,339,000 97.07
Unlisted secunities 19,230 0.07 20,160 0.06
Denvatives 9,607 0.03 a1 687 .25

26,934,734 97.94 35,450,913 97.38

The Vietnam Stock Index (the *VNINDEX™) 15 a capitalisation-weighted index of all the compares
listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange and has gecgraphical foeus similar to the Fund. However,
the Manager does not manage the Fund's investment strategy to track the Index.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 Market risk (continued)
3.2.1 Price risk (contimued)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

The table below and overleal summarises the Fund's overall concentration nsk exposure of

investments as at 30 September 2022

Listed securities
Vielnam
Banking
- I8 Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam
- Others
Capital Goods
Communications Equipment
Comstruction
Diversified Financials
Enecrgy
Exchange-Traded Funds
Food and Drink
Food Beverage & Tobacco
- Musan Group Corp
- Cthers
Hesilth Care Equipment & Services
Home Improvements
Information md Communication
-FPT Corporation
- Others
Infrastricture
Infrastructure Construction
Institutional Brokerage
Insurance
Manufacturing
Materials
il and Gas
Phammaceuticals
Fhammaceuticals, Biotechnology & Life Sciences
Feal Estate
Eeal Estate Owners & Developers
Shipping
Technology Hardware & Equipment
-Digiworld Corporation
Transpor
Transportation
Utilities

Total listed securities

MNominal Fair Yool

Holdings Value NAV
(833

552,816 1,697,191 617

- 4,438 354 1615

591,926 215

121,741 044

385,331 142

404,491 147

138,783 0.51

64,170 023

1,783,339 649

339,200 1,408,413 512

- 547,24 1499

40,316 015

193,493 0.70

501,468 1,693,083 616

. 1,219,701 443

203,148 0,74

300,793 109

140,929 088

332,641 1.21

1,800,297 6.55

916,770 333

1,626,312 .56

22 "

14,638 005

2,226,885 £.09

658,520 139

272350 208

315160 1,391 448 5.6

. 328,679 1.19

121,839 044

438,590 160

26,905,507 07.84
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022

{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)
3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk (continued)

MNominal Fair % of
Holdings Value NAVY
1SS
Unlisted securities
Vietnam
Transportation - 19.230 0.07
Total unlisted securities 19,230 007
Derivatives
Vietnam
Real Estate - 9,607 0.03
Total derivatives 9,607 .03
Total financial assets at Tair value through profit
or loss 26,934,734 97.94
* Denotes less than 0.01
The below table is a swmmary of derivatives held which give rise to price risk:
2022 2021
Comntract value Fair value Contract value Fair value
Uss Uss USss USss
Derivatives
Equity rights 113,091 9,607 561,955 91,687
22
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{Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {confinued)
3.2 Market risk (continued})
3.2.1 Price risk (continued)
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The table below and overleaf summarises the Fund's owverall concentration nsk exposure of

investments as at 30 September 2021

MNominal Fair Y of
Holdings Value MNAV
Uss

Listed securities

Vietnam
Agriculture - 201,908 0.55
Banking - 4,580,055 26.31
Capital Goods - 688,168 1.90
Communi cations Equipment - 125445 0.34
Constmction - 594,346 163
Courier Services - 140,769 0.39
Diversified Financials - 724,342 1.5%
Exchange-Traded Funds - 11,542 0,03
Food and Dnank - 2,706,916 744
Food Beverage & Tobacco - 193,224 053
Home Improvements - 57,336 016
Informatiion and Commumcalion
= FPT Corporation 460,224 1,881,934 517
- Others - 1,535,185 4.21
Infrastructure - TI12,905 1.96
Infrastrcture Construction - 71,231 0.20
Institutional Brokerage - 366,267 1.01
Insurance - 309 959 085
Mannfacturing
- Hea Phat Group Joint Stock Co 1,205,237 2,803,370 7.70
= Others - 1,979,730 544
Materials - 2,958,921 813
il and Gas - 2,234,260 6.13
Pharmaceuticals - 26 -
Feal Estate - 3,273,042 899
Real Estste Owners & Developers - 459,629 1.26
Rubber & Plastic - 42475 0.12
Shipping - 479, 7Th 1.32
Technology Hardware & Equipment - 956,155 263
Transpon - 169, 664 047
Transponation - 80,466 0.2

Total listed securities 35,339,066 97.07
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)
3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk (continued)

MNominal Fair % of
Holdings Value NAVY
1SS
Unlisted securities
Yietnam
Transportation - 20,160 0.06
Total unlisted securities 20,160 006
Derivatives
Vietnam
Real Estate - 26,190 0.07
Diversified Financials - 65,497 018
Total derivatives 21,687 025
Total financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 35,450,913 97.38

* Denotes less than 0.01
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continuad)
3.2 Market risk (continued)
3.2.1 Price risk (continued)

The table below swmmarises the sensitivity of the Fund's net assets attributable to unitholdars to
equity price movements, including the effect of movements in foreign currency exchange rates on
equity prices, as at 30 September 2022 and 2021.

FRS 107 requires management to identify a relevant risk variable that is most reflective of the risk
of the markets in which the Fund invests in. Henee, the analysis 15 based on the assumptions that
the VNINDEX increased by 37.3% (2021 39.5%) and decreased by 23.6% (2021: 22.4%) as at 30
September 2022, with all other varables held constant and that the fair value of the Fund’s
underlving investments moved according to their historical comelation with the VNINDEX. This
represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the VNINDEX, having
regard to the historical volatility of the VNINDEX,

The historical correlation of the Fund's underlving investments with movements in VNINDEX is
58.0% (2021: 56.8%) of the index gain as at 30 September 2022. The impact below anses from the
reasonable possible change in the fair value of the Fund’s underlying investments.

2022 2021
Uss Uss
Effect on net assets attributable to unitholdars of an
increase in the index 5,949 748 8.167.588
Effect on net assets attnbutable to umtholders of an
decrease in the index (3,764.452) (4,631,746)

The sensitivity analysis is prepared using the monthly data of the Fund since its inception. The
presentation of the sensitivity analyvsis is based upon the portfolio composition as at 30 September
2022 and 2021 and the historical correlation of the securities comprising the portfolio to the
YHNINDEX. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the
VNINDEX, is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as at 30
September 2022 and 2021 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund’s net assets
attributed to unitholders of future movements in the level to the VNINDEX.

Dnring the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic has continued fo spread across the globe. [t is cansing
very sigmbicant financial market, econome and social dislocaton globally, meluding very
significant disruption to business and economic activity. The economic disruption may significantly
reduce the value of many financial instruments including those held by the Fund. The ultimate extent
of the effect of this on the Fund is not possible to estimate at this tme and will only be finally
determined on realisation of investments,

25

122/198



3.

EDINETOOOO

O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continuad)
3.2 Market risk (continued)
3.2.1 Price risk (continued)

On 24% February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russias invasion of
Ukraine carnes significant risks for a world economy that has vet to fully recover from the impacts
of the global Covid-19 pandemic. The impact on the Fund of the consequential geo-political
instability, financial market volatlity, inflation and imposition of sanctions on Russia are not
possible to forecast at this time.

3.2.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markets interest
rates on the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities and future cash flows.

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash
equivalents, which is 3% (2021: 3%) of the total assets. The Fund does not have any significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. At the reporting date, the Fund’s excess cash and cash
equivalents are held with approved reputable financial mstitufions in the form of overmght and
short-term instruments all with maturities of less than cne month.

As at 30 September 2022, if interest rates on cash and cash equivalents increase or decrease by 50
(2021 507 basis poants over the next one vear with all other vanables held constant, the increase or
decrease in the profit or loss after tax would be USS3,653 (2021: USS5,507) as a result of lugher or
lower net interest income, This sensitivity analysis summarises the estimated effect of changes in
inkerest rates at the reporting date which may not be representative of the exposure for each type of
cash and cash equivalents,

3.2.3 Crvene ¥ sk

The Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than the USS, the functional currency. It is
therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the secunties denominated in other currencies
will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. As stated in the Offering Memorandum, the Fund's
policy is not to enter inte any currency hedging transactions. As per cash deposits, the Fund’s policy
is to convert foreign currency deposits that are in excess of investment requirements into the
fimctional currency.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk {continuad)

3.2.3 Currency risk (continued)
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The table below summarises the Fund’s exposire to key foreign currencies from its monetary and
non-monstary assets and liabilities, expressed in USS, at 30 September 2022 and 2021:

2022

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Receivables

Due from broker

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to broker
Payables

Total liabilities

Net currency exposure

2021

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at far value through profit or loss
Recavables

Dz from broker

Total assets

Liahilities
[ie to broker
Pavables

Total liabilities

Nel currency exposure

124/198

USS VND Total
USS USS USS
292,058 437,553 730,511
- 26934734 2693473

4381 44,909 49,200
100,840 . 100,840
398,179 27,417,196 27,815,375
- 100,658 100,658
212,875 - 212,875
212,875 100,658 313,533
185,304 27,316,538 27,501,842
427,938 673,432 1,101,370
- 35450013 35450913
66,124 §3,045 150,069
- 228,614 228,614
494,062 36,436,904 36,930,966
- 42,780 42,780
484,248 - 484,248
484,248 42,780 527,028
9,814 36,394,124 36,403,938
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)
3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.3 Currency risk (continued)

Investments, which are the sigmficant items in the Statement of Financial Pesition, are exposed to
currency risk and price nsk. Price nsk sensitivity analysis includes the impact of ¢urrency nisk on
non-monetary investments, Consequently, currency nsk sensitivity is prepared and disclosed for
monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities. The table overleaf shows the sensitivity of the
Fund’s menetary and non-menetary assets and liabalities to foreign curreney exposure should the
currencies increase of decrease against the Fund’s functional currency with all other variables held
constant.

2022 n
Impact on Impact on
net assets net assets
Reasonable attributable Reasonable attributahle
possible to possible to
changes unitholders changes unitholders
Uss USS
Currency
VND {1.02)% (279,655) 0.87% 316,629

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund had no foreign eurrency contracts.

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Fund’s liquidity risk anses mainly from redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund invests the
majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market. Mo more than 20% of the
NAV may be invested in investments which are not listed on an exchange or for which prices are
not readily available.

The Furd has the ability to bormow in the short-term for the purposes of meeting redemptions and
short-term bridging requirements.

To ensure continuity of finding, dedicated persomnel are responsible for monitoring the Fund’s
liguuchity position on a daily basis to ensure that sufficient cash resources and ligquid assets are

available to meet liabilities as and when they fall dus.

The Fund may., from time, invest in derivative contracts traded over the counter, which are not traded
in an organised market and may be illigquicd.
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liguidity risk (continued)

As a result, the Fund may not be able to liqudate promptly its investments in these instruments at
an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirements or to respond to specific events
such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

Asat 30 September 2022 and 2021, there 15 no single investor who holds more than 20% of units in
the Fund.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabalities and net assets attnbutable to unitholders
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractial maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months approximate their carrving values as the impact of discounting 1s
not sigmficant.

Less than

3 months Total
2022 USs USS
Trade and other pavables 313,533 313,533
Met assats attributable to umitholders 27.501. 842 27.501 842

27,815,375 27,815,375

2021

Trade and other payables 527,028 527028

MNet assets attributable to unitholders 36,403,938 36,403,938
36,930,966 36,930,966

24 Credityisk

The Manager with whom the Fund has entrusted the management of its funds has policies in place
to ensure that investment transactions are carried out only with approved counterparties and are
within approved trading units. The Fund spreads its transactions over a number of counterparties
such that it is not unduly dependent on any single counterparty. Cash deposits are kept only at banks
which the Manager has approved.
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continuad)
3.4 Credit risk (continued)

The Fund takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due, mmcluding transactions with counterparties such as 1ssuers, brokers,
custodians and banks,

All transactions in quoted securities are settled / paid upon delivery using approved brokers. The
risk of default is deemed to be low, as delivery of secunties is only made onee the broker has
received payment. Payment 15 made on a purchase enee the secunties have been received by the
broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meets its obligation.

The Fund's exposure to credit nsk anses mainly from its bank balances and assets held with
custodians and counterparties, The table below summanses the credit rating of banks, custodians
and counterparties with whom the Fund's cash balances and assets are held as at 30 September 2022
and 2021,

o5 of NAV 2022 o of NAY 2021
Credit rating Credit rating

Brown Brothers Harriman
& Co, ("BBH & Co.™) 100,59 A+ (Fitch) 100.41 A+ (Fitch)

G.ALS, (Cayman) Limited were appointed as Trustee for the Fund. As Trustee, they have appointed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) as its Custodhan, The Custodian have, in
turn, appointed BEH & Co., as their global sub-custodian, The cash is ultimately held at BBH &
Co., with cash being held at BEH & Co., as Banker.

The Fund has agreed in certain circumstances to subscribe to the BBH & Co. Cash Management
Service (CMS) which invests idle demand deposit balances in unrestncted overnight deposit
instruments with varous finaneial institutions. In addition, meney is also temporarily held for short
penods at BEH & Co."s Grand Cayman branch when meney for redemptions or fees and expenses
are being paid out of the Fund, Such deposits may be subject to both soversign actions in the
qunsdiction of the deposit institution and sovereign actions in the junsdiction of the currency,
including but not limited to freeze, seizure, or diminution, In any case, the risk associated with the
repayment of principal and pavment of interest on such instruments by the institution with whom
the deposit is ultimately placad will be exclusively for the Fund’s accounts.
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)
3.4 Credit risk (continued)

The Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at
default and loss given default. Management consider both historieal analysis and forward looking
information in determining any expected credit loss, At 30 September 2022 and 2021, all
receivables, amount due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits are held with counterparties
with a credit rating of A+ or higher and are due to be settled within 1 week. Management considers
the probability of default 1o be close to zero as the counterparties have a strong capacity 1o meet
their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insigmficant to
the Fund,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial
assels,

4.5 Capital risk

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholdars, The amount of
net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject
to dail y subseriptions and redemptions at the diseretion of unitholders. The Fund’s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide
refurns for unitholders and benefits for other stake holders and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.

3.6 Fair value estimation

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

s Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

#  Inputs other than quoted prices ineluded in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is denved from prices) (Level 2).

s Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3.6 Fair value estimation (continued)
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The following table anal yses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities

by class) measured at far value at 30 September 2022 and 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USS USS USS 'Ss

2022
Assels
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Listed secunties 26,905,807 - - 20,905,807
Unlisted secunties - - 19,230 19,230
Denvatives - 9607 - 9607
Total assets 26,905,397 9,607 19,230 26,934,734
2021
LY H
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Listed securnities 35,339,000 - - 35,339,006
Unlisted secunties - - 20,160 20,160
Denvatives - 01,687 - 91,687
Total assels 35,339,066 91,687 20,160 35,450,913
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(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
1.6 Fair value estimation (continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement 1s categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the far
value measurement in its entirety, If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgement, considenng factors specific to the asset or hability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the Fune, The
Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distnbuted
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market.

There were no transfers between Levels | and 2 for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, a sensitivity analysis for Level 3 positions were not presented,
as it was deemed that the impact of reasonable changes in inputs would not be significant.

The table below and overleaf presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Financial
assets, fair
value through
profit or loss Total
Uss USss
2022
Beginming of the vear 20,160 20,160
Losses recognised in net change in fair value on financial
assets and liabalities at fair value through profit or loss {930 {930
End of the year 19,230 19,230
Change in unrealised losses for Level 3
assets held at the end of the year (930} (9300

33

130/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

1.6 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial
assets, fair
value through
profit or loss Total
Uss USss
2021
Beginning of the yvear 19,776 19.776
Gains recognised in net change in fair value on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 384 384
End of the year 20,160 20,160
Change in unrealised gains for Level 3
assets held at the end of the year 384 384

For the financial vear ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, fair value gains related to these
investments were recognised in the profit or loss.

3.7 Offsetting financial instruments

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund was not subject to any master netting arrangements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Fair value of securities that are not quoted in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques, primanly eaming multiples and discounted cash flows. The models used to determine
fair value are validated and penodically reviewed by expenenced personnel independent of that area
that created them. The models are based on company-generated cash lows including estimates and
assumptions based on observable market data on interest rates and equity retums, The discount rates
used for valuing equity securities are determined based on historical equity retumns for other entities
operating in the same industry for which market retums are observable. Estimates and judzements
used are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in assumplions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of the securities.
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(Continued)

NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 IS |
USS UsS
MNet change in fair value on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
-Realised 7,245,956 8,279,131
-Met change in unrealised {13.057.526) 6,154,832
Total net (losses)/gains (5,811,571) 14,433,963

DISTRIBUTION

The Manager did not propose any distribution to unitholders for the vears ended 30 September 2022
and 2021,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the cash and cash equivalents for the Fund comprnise
the following balances.

2022 2021
USSs USS
Cash at bank 730,511 1,101,370

Cash at bank of US$730,511 (2021: USS1,101,370) was placed with BBH & Co. Interest income
on these balances for the vear amounted to US1,960 (2021 USS38).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

2022 202

USs USs

Listed secunties 26,905,897 35,339 066
Unhisted secunties 19,230 20,160
Denvatives 9,607 91,687
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 26,934,734 35,450,913
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2021
USE

66,122
83,045
vl

150,069

2021
USE

228,614

(Continued)
RECEIVABLES
2022
USs
Amounts due from unitholders 4,022
Dividends recervable 44,727
Interest receivable 541
49,290
DUE FROMMTO BROKER
2022
USs
Dz from broker 10,840
2022
USss
[hie to broker 1(H),658

2021
USS

42,780

Dee from and due to broker include amounts recevable and pavable for secunties transactions that
have not settled at the date of the Statement of Financial Pesition. The Fund continuously monitors

the credit standing of each broker with which it conducts business.

The Fund currently does not offset balances with the Custochan and all due from and due to broker

balances are presented at gross in the Statement of Financial Position.
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FPAYABLES

Redemption payvable to unitholders
Management fee payable
Investment management fee payable
Trustee fee pavable

Administration fee payable
Custodian fee payable

Andit fee payable

Distributor fze pavable

Agent company fee payable
Other fees

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2022
USS

2247
19,893
2,465
6,375
71,523
43,000
12,481
4,969

2

49,922
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2021
USE

250,574
2,685
23,860
2,466
6,479
83.077
42,500
14,918
5,950
51,730

212,875

484,248

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
signficant influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the financial statements, during the
vear, in the ordinary course of its business, the following transactions took place with the related

parties,

{al Management fee

The Manager is entitled to a management fee calenlated at the rate of 0.09% per annum of the Fund’s
NAV. The management fee 1s caleulated prior to the accrual of any performance fee and accrued on
each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

Management fee

2022
Uss

31,446

2021
Uss

25,441

37
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b} Investment management fee
The Investment Manager is enfitled to an investment management fee calenlated at 0.8% per anmum

of the Fund's NAV. The investment management fee is caleulated prior to the acerual of any
performance fee and accrued on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

222 2021
USsS Uss
Investment management fee 179,439 253,002

{c! Performance fee

The Investment Manager is also entitled to receive a Performance Fee caleulated and payable in
arrears at the end of each calendar quarter. The Performance Fee for any calendar quarter will be an
amount equal to 15% of the amount by which the NAV per unit at the end of the relevant quarter
exceeds the highest of the NAV per unit as at the end of any of the preceding calendar quarters or
the initial 1ssue price of USS100 11 1t 1s higher, multiplied by the average number of units in 1ssue
during the relevant quarter.

2022 2021
USss LSS
Performance fee paid 416,062 582,398

For the quarter ended 31 Decernber 2021 and 30 March 2022, the Fund cutperformed the High
Watermark (“HWM™) which resulted in performance fees being incurred by the Fund during the
vear ended 30 September 2022, For the quarter ended 30 June 2021, the Fund outperformed the
HWM which resulted in performance fees being incurred by the Fund during the vear ended 30
September 2021.

id) Trustee fee

The Trustee is entitled to a trustee fee caleulated at 0.06% per annum of the Fund's NAV, and was
subject to a minimum fee of US$30,000 per annum. The trustee fee is calculated prior to the acerual
of any performance fee and accrued on each valuation day and pavable monthly in arrears.

2022 2021
USS USS
Trustee fee 30,0040 30,000

38
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
fe) Custodian fee and Adwministration fee

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Fund at such rates as agread between the Custodian
and Trustee,

The administration fee is caleulated at the rate of 0.1 1% per anmum of the Fund’s N AV for any NAV
equal to or below USS20 million or 0.1% per anmum of the Fund's NAV for NAV above USS20
million and was subject to a minimum of USS$72,000 per annum. The administration fee is cal culated
prior to the acerual of any performance fee and acerued on each valuation day and payable monthly
1N arrears,

2022 2021
USS Uss
Custodian and administration fee 423,349 302,523

(it Registrar fee

The Administrator charges USS3,000 per anmun for acting as delegate registrar of the Fund.

2022 02
Uss Uss
Registrar fee 3,004 3,000

(gl Distributor and agent company fee

The Distribator reccives out of assets of the Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.5% per annum of the Fund's
NAV. The agent company receives out of assets of the Fund, in its eapacity as the agent company
of the Fund, a fee at the rate of 0,2% per annum of the Fund’s NAV. The distnbution and agent
company fee 15 caleulated prior to the accral of any performance fee and acerued on each valuation
day and pavable monthly in arrears.

2022 2021
USS USS
Distributor fee 174,697 158,079
Agent company fee 69,873 63,261

39

136/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(Continued)

13, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For the period from 1 October 2022 to the issuance date of these financial statements, the Fund had
subscriptions and redsmptions amounting to USSE4,601 and US$654,628 respectively.

14. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were anthorised for issue by the management on 12 January 2023,

40
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2023
26,990,288.45 3,521,422,934
212,544 .97 27,730,742
26,777,743.48 3,493,692,192
135,802
197.18 25,726
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1)
2023 5,000
50,000 1,000
@)
2023

2023

26,777,743.48

7,793,313,198
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2022 31
C =)
134,291,964 : 768,402
10,540,727 768,402
1,750,820 768,402

110,000,000

10,447,202 133,523,562
1,553,215 50,000,000
83,523,562
83,523,562
83,523,562
133,523,562
134,291,964 134,291,964
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2021 2022 31

20,786,142

3,037,124

17,749,018

10,039,082

7,709,936

1,374,169

21,005 1,395,174

9,105,110

9,105,110

9,105,110
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2021 2022 31

2021 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 | 124,418,452 | 124,418,452

9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110

9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110

2022 31 50,000,000 83,523,562 83,523,562 | 133,523,562 | 133,523,562
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FC Investment Ltd.
Balance sheet

As of August 31, 2022

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 134,291,964 | Current liabilities: 768,402
Cash and deposits 10,540,727 Accounts payable 768,402
Accounts receivable 1,750,820 | Total liabilities 768,402
Short-term loans receivable 110,000,000 NET ASSETS
Operational investment securities 10,447,202 | Shareholders® equity 133,523,562
Other 1,553,215 Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 83,523,562
Other retained earnings 83,523,562
Retained earnings brought forward 83,523,562
Total net assets 133,523,562
Total assets 134,291,964 | Total liabilities and net assets 134,291,964

146/198



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2021 to August 31, 2022

(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 20,786,142
Cost of sales 3,037,124
Gross profit 17,749,018
Selling, general and administrative expenses 10,039,082
Operating income 7,709,936
Other income
Interest income 1,374,169
Foreign exchange gains 21,005 1,395,174
Ordinary income 9,105,110
Income before income taxes 9,105,110
Net income 9,105,110
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(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders” equity
Retained earnings
Other
retained Total net
Common stock earnings Total Shareho_l ders assets
i retained equity
Retained earninas
earnings g
brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2021 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 | 124,418,452 | 124,418,452
Changed amounts for this term
Net income for the year 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110
Total changed amounts for this term - 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110 9,105,110
Balance at August 31, 2022 50,000,000 83,523,562 83,523,562 | 133,523,562 | 133,523,562
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Notes to Financial Statements

1 Note to Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities
Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.
For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar
associations (deemed to be securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount corresponding to the ownership percentage is
used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the partnership contract.
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2021 31

125,102,335 : 683,883
32,331,643 683,883
1,565,583 683,883

80,000,000
10,675,597 124,418,452
529,512 50,000,000
74,418,452
74,418,452
74,418,452

124,418,452

125,102,335 125,102,335
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2020 2021 31

32,751,757

7,655,836

25,095,921

7,805,701

17,290,220

1,183,435 1,183,435

26,956 26,956

18,446,699

18,446,699

18,446,699
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2020 2021 31

2020 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 | 105,971,753 | 105,971,753

18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699

18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699

2021 31 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 | 124,418,452 | 124,418,452
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FC Investment Ltd.
Balance sheet
As of August 31, 2021

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 125,102,335 | Current liabilities: 683,883
Cash and deposits 32,331,643 Accounts payable 683,883
Accounts receivable 1,565,583 | Total liabilities 683,883
Short-term loans receivable 80,000,000 NET ASSETS
Operational investment securities 10,675,597 | Shareholders® equity 124,418,452
Other 529,512 Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 74,418,452
Other retained earnings 74,418,452
Retained earnings brought forward 74,418,452
Total net assets 124,418,452
Total assets 125,102,335 | Total liabilities and net assets 125,102,335
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FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021

(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 32,751,757
Cost of sales 7,655,836
Gross profit 25,095,921
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7,805,701
Operating income 17,290,220
Other income
Interest income 1,183,435 1,183,435
Other expenses
Foreign exchange loss 26,956 26,956
Ordinary income 18,446,699
Income before income taxes 18,446,699
Net income 18,446,699
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(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders® equity
Retained earnings
Other
retained Total net
Common stock earnings Total Sharehqlders assets
- retained equity
Retained earnings
earnings g
brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2020 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 105,971,753 105,971,753
Changed amounts for this term
Net income for the year 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699
Igﬁn" changed amounts for this - | 18,446,600 | 18,446,600 | 18,446,699 | 18,446,699
Balance at August 31, 2021 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 124,418,452 124,418,452
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note to Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities
Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.

For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar
associations (deemed to be securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount corresponding to the ownership percentage is
used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the partnership contract.
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Capital Asset Management Co., Ltd.

2004
383

G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited

7,530
31

SMT Fund Services (lIreland)

89 1,720

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London

2023 3,420
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise the
balance sheets as of August 31, 2021, and income statements and the statements of changes in
shareholder®s equity for the year then ended, notes to financial statements, and the annexed
detailed statement thereof , all expressed in Japanese yen.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial of FC Investment Ltd as of August 31, 2021 and the result of its
operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern and disclosing, as required by accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan, matters related to going concern.

Auditor®s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, basis on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to
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events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor"s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.
We communicate with the Management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we 1dentify during our audit.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 31, 2022
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Independent auditor®s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Vietnam Fund (a sub trust of FC Global) (the Fund) as at 30 September 2022, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Fund"s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2022;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Statement by the Trustee (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor®s

report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor®s report(continued)

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
ligquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report(continued)

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund ”s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, i1f such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman)
Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
12 January 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd. :

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise the balance
sheets as of August 31, 2022, and income statements and the statements of changes in shareholder®s equity
for the year then ended, notes to financial statements, and the annexed detailed statement thereof , all
expressed in Japanese yen.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial of FC Investment Ltd as of August 31, 2022 and the result of its operations for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles general ly accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards general ly accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Japan, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other Information

Other information is financial or non-financial information (other than financial statements and the
auditor”s report thereon) included in an entity*s audited financial statements.

Based on the work, we have concluded that there is no other information and we do not perform any
procedures.

Management"s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s ability to
continue as a going concern and disclosing, as required by accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan, matters related to going concern.

Auditor®s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that
includes our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management"s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, basis on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability tocontinue asa
going concern. 1T we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events In a manner that achieves fair presentation in accordance with accounting principles
general ly accepted in Japan.
We communicate with the Management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 31, 2023
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